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1st floor, 723/67

P. R- K. AS SO C IAT E S Tankaprasad Sadak Ghumti

Anamnagar, Kathmandu

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS ﬁ;;;‘nl
ICAN REG. NO.: 448 E | prabrajkaflergmail.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of,
M/s Asian Life Insurance Company Limited

*  Report an the Audit of the Financial Skakamants Amandad)

Opinion

We have audited the amended financial statements of M/s Asian Life Insurance Company Limited
(the Company), which comprise the amended Statement of Financial Position as at Ashadh 32, 2075,
and the amended statement of Profit or Loss, amended Statement of Other Comprehensive Income,
amended Statement of changes in equity and amended Statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as at Ashadh 32, 2075, and its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
ICAN's Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Nepal, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAN’s Handbook of The Code of Ethics
For Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Amendment

After issuance of our independent auditor's report dated 2077.02.14, the management has prepared the
attached amended financial statement as per the direction of Beema Samiti as on dated 2077.06.05. We
would like to draw your attention to changes in the financial statements relating to Life Insurance Fund,
Deferred Tax Assets, retained earnings and other reserves on account of changes in Property, Plant and
Equipment, Loan Measured at Amortized cost, Other Assets, Insurance Contract Liabilities, Other
Liabilities and resulting changes in statement of financial position, statement of profit and loss,
statement of comprehensive income and statement of change in equity. Our procedure for the audit of
this amended financial statements is limited to review of financial information as amended as per the
direction of Beema Samiti.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements.
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

s Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the company to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

Life
Insurance
Company
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

= Report on Requirement of Companies Act 2063 and Insurance Act, 2049

We have obtained satisfactory information and explanations asked for, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of aur audit; the returns received from the branch
offices of the company, though the statements are independently not audited, were adequate for the
purpose of audit; the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2063, and they are in agreement with the books of accounts of the company; and the
accounts and records of the company are properly maintained in accordance with the prevailing laws.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, in the course of our audit,
we observed that adequate amount has been set aside for insurance fund and other statutory reserves
as per Beema Samiti Directives; the business of the Company was conducted satisfactorily in line with
the Beema Samiti Directives, and the Company's transaction were found to be within the scope of its
authority. We did not come across cases of where the company has acted against the interest of insured
and investors. Further, we did not come across cases of accounting related fraud and the cases where
the board of directors or any director or any office bearer of the Company has acted contrary to the
provision of law, caused loss or damage to the company or committed any misappropriation of the
funds of company.

For P.R.K. Associates
Chartered Accountants

"

e ane

CA. Prabin Raj Kafle

Membership Number: 637

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

Date: 2077.06.30

UDIN Number: 201016CA00637vaM5Z
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Asian Life Insurance Company Ltd.
Statement of Financial Position
As at 32nd Ashadh 2075 (16 July 2018)

Amount in NPR.

Particulars Note As at 32nd Restated* As at Restated*As at

Ashadh 2075 31st Ashadh 2074 | 1st Shrawan 2073
ASSETS
Property, Plant and Equipment 4.1 468,352,750 472,585,171 415,789,718
Intangible assets 4.2 2,513,187 3,066,701 3,160,469
Investment Properties 4.3 - - -
Financial Investment 4.4 12,048,244,654 8,841,494,753 7,241,897,647
Loan measured at amortised cost 4.5 914,147,779 555,997,210 362,203,175
Other Financial Assets measured at amortised cost 4.6 1,350,832 1,265,412 1,738,571
Other Assets 4.7 203,815,894 345,762,837 376,185,896
Deferred Tax Assets 4.8 28,400,147 - -
Current Tax Assets 4.9 523,415,073 362,432,422 270,121,312
Insurance Receivables 4.10 - - -
Cash and Cash Equivalent 4.11 696,175,867 787,914,012 537,850,323
Total Assets 14,886,416,183 11,370,518,519 9,208,947,111
Equity
Equity Share Capital 4.12 1,256,725,454 805,593,240 671,327,700
Retained Earnings 413 (11,575,430) 54,498,844 150,929,575
Catastrophe Reserve 4.13 37,249,887 37,249,887 31,225,704
Other Equity 4.13 118,812,943 86,849,519 66,570,577
Total Equity 1,401,212,854 984,191,491 920,053,556
Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities 414 13,188,807,669 10,180,794,453 8,022,406,072
Employee obligation 415 45,403,561 30,326,510 19,391,959
Borrowings 4.16 - - -
Financial Liabilities 4.17 148,006,841 78,269,979 82,496,953
Deferred Tax Liability 4.8 - 29,262,185 92,376,088
Provisions 4.18 10,194 5,092,560 15,384,004
Other Liabilities 419 102,975,064 62,581,342 56,838,479
Total Liabilities 13,485,203,328 10,386,327,028 8,288,893,555
Total Equity and Liabilities 14,886,416,183 11,370,518,519 9,208,947,111

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements. As per our report of even date
Deepak Kumar Shrestha Sushant Chachan Surendra Kumar Goel CA. Prabin Raj Kafle
Chairman Director Director Proprietors
P.R.K. Associates
Chartered Accountants
Ravi Kumar Gupta Saurav Rungata Hom Bahadur Shrestha Kamal Dhungana Kathmandu, Nepal
Director Director 0. Chief Executive Officer ~ Chief Finance Officer Date : 16/10/2020
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Asian Life Insurance Company Ltd.
Statement of Profit or Loss
for the year ended 32nd Ashadh 2075 (16 July 2018) ] )
Figures in NPR
Restated*
Particulars i 32T1%a;se;;’:s 75 Year ended
31st Ashadh 74
Gross Premiums 4.20 3,019,113,009 2,293,953,491
Premium Ceded to reinsurers 4.21 23,165,687 15,448,603
Net Premiums 2,995,947,322 2,278,504,888
Fees and Commision Income 4.22 - -
Investment Income 4.23 1,113,801,432 611,827,538
Net realized gains and (losses) 4.24 (51,162,958) 169,686,344
Fair Value gains and (losses) 4.25 - -
Other Income 4.26 112,291,709 31,514,187
Total revenue 4,170,877,506 3,091,532,956
Claim Payment 4.27 212,850,368 179,963,297
Claims ceeded to reinsurers 4.28 8,457,911 13,893,255
Net change in contract liabilities 4.14.1 3,008,013,216 2,259,111,293
Net Claim Payment 3,212,405,673 2,425,181,335
Service Charge 4.29 29,959,473 22,785,049
Medical Fee 4.30 2,115,653 1,713,136
Agent Commission 4.31 340,948,293 253,193,803
Finance Costs 4.32 4,632,137 7,672,322
Other operating and administrative expenses 4.33 294,627,444 143,508,534
Employee Benefit Expense 4.34 207,971,036 151,518,439
Other expenses 880,254,037 580,391,282
Total Benefits, Claims and Other expenses 4,092,659,710 3,005,572,617
Profit Before Tax 78,217,796 85,960,339
Income tax expense
Current tax expense - -
Deferred Tax expense/(income) (13,179,551) (18,465,750)
Profit after tax for the year 91,397,347 104,426,089
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of parent 91,397,347 104,426,089
Non-controlling interests - -
Earnings Per Share (EPS) 4.35
Basic EPS 7.27 8.31
Diluted EPS 7.27 8.31

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements. As per our report of even date

Deepak Kumar Shrestha Sushant Chachan Surendra Kumar Goel
Chairman Director Director

CA. Prabin Raj Kafle
Proprietors
P.R.K. Associates
Chartered Accountants

Ravi Kumar Gupta Saurav Rungata
Director Director

Hom Bahadur Shrestha Kamal Dhungana
O. Chief Executive Officer  Chief Finance Officer

Kathmandu, Nepal
Date : 16/10/2020
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Asian Life Insurance Company Ltd.
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 32nd Ashadh 2075 (16 July 2018)
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Figures in NPR

Particulars

Year ended
32nd Ashadh 75

Restated*
Year ended
31st Ashadh 74

Other comprehensive income

Gain/(Losses) on revaluation - 42,350,000
Actuarial Gains / (Losses) on defined benefit plans (8,381,075) (4,188,704)
Gains / (Losses) from investment in equity instruments measured at fair value (169,550,048) (216,753,909)
Income tax relating to above items 44,482,781 44,648,153
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (133,448,343) (133,944,459)
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (42,050,995) (29,518,370)
Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent (42,050,995) (29,518,370)

Non-controlling interests

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.

Sushant Chachan
Director

Deepak Kumar Shrestha
Chairman

As per our report of even date

Surendra Kumar Goel
Director

CA. Prabin Raj Kafle
Proprietors
P.R.K. Associates
Chartered Accountants

Hom Bahadur Shrestha
O. Chief Executive Officer

Ravi Kumar Gupta
Director

Saurav Rungata
Director

Kamal Dhungana
Chief Finance Officer

Kathmandu, Nepal
Date : 16/10/2020
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Asian Life Insurance Company Ltd.
Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended 32nd Ashadh 2075 (16 July 2018)

Figures in NPR

Particulars

Year ended
32nd Ashadh 75

Restated* Year
ended 31st Ashadh 74

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit for the year 78,217,796 85,960,339
Adjustments for:

Investment Income (991,338,466) (554,834,263)
Rental Income - (1,411,369)
Fair value losses/(gains) - -
Amortization of Intangible Assets 553,514 343,768
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 11,663,745 9,280,059
Impairment of Financial Assets 7,975,782 6,366,935
Finance Cost - 7,672,322
Working capital adjustments:

(Increase)/ Decrease in financial assets (320,341,572) (349,662,096)
(Increase)/ Decrease in other assets 168,904,358 167,755,140
(Increase)/ Decrease in other Fixed Deposits (2,905,000,000) (1,562,500,000)
Increase / (Decrease) in Insurance contract liabilities 3,007,677,833 2,158,388,381
Increase / (Decrease) in financial liabilities 70,371,044 (4,226,974)
Increase / (Decrease) in Provision (5,082,366) (15,384,004)
Increase / (Decrease) in other liabilities 39,639,106 41,114,675

Cash generated from operations

(836,759,227)

(11,137,087)

Income Tax Paid

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

(836,759,227)

(11,137,087)

CASH FLOWS FROM / (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received from investment 944,311,288 542,348,100
Acquisition of Property, plant and Equipment (7,439,774) (66,075,513)
Acquisition of Intangibles - (250,000)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Investments (387,818,407) (260,770,530)
Interest received from loans 8,469,234 7,825,109
(Increase)/ Decrease in Loans disbursed (358,364,890) (171,742,661)
Rental Income - 1,411,369
Other Indirect Incomes and expenses 108,024,279 218,532,778
Dividend Received 38,580,002 4,661,053
NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 345,761,732 275,939,705
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Issue of right share 402,796,636 -
Share issue expenses (3,537,286)

Dividend paid - (7,066,607)
Finance Cost - (7,672,322)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 399,259,350 (14,738,929)
INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (91,738,145) 250,063,690
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, Beginning of Year 787,914,012 537,850,323
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, End of Period 696,175,867 787,914,012

Deepak Kumar Shrestha Sushant Chachan
Chairman Director

Surendra Kumar Goel

Director

Ravi Kumar Gupta Saurav Rungata
Director Director

6 /

Hom Bahadur Shrestha
O. Chief Executive Officer

Kamal Dhungana
Chief Finance Officer

CA. Prabin Raj Kafle
Proprietors
P.R.K. Associates
Chartered Accountants

Kathmandu, Nepal
Date : 16/10/2020
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 32nd Ashadh 2075

Asian Life Insurance Company Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 32nd Ashadh 2075 (16 July 2018)

1. General Information of the Company

Asian Life Insurance Company ('the company') is a limited liability company which has got operating license
as per Insurance Act 2049 from Beema Samiti (Insurance Regulatory Authority of Nepal) on 27th February,2008
(Falgun 15, 2064) and started its function on 3rd April, 2008 (Chaitra 21, 2064) for developing and promoting
Asian Life Insurance Company as a brand leader in the life insurance Industry of Nepal by offering flawless
product and services that exceed customer satisfaction.

The company has vision to develop excellent human resources who can contribute to flawless service, to
inform and educate every Nepali citizen about the importance of Life Insurance for their future safety and
security and the benefit to their life and their offspring, promote equality and transparency in both customer
service and company management.

Asian Life has reinsurance support from Hannover Riick Re, Hannover, German, Score global Life se Singapore
& Nepal Re which are financially sound reinsurer of international repute.

The Company is listed on Nepal Stock Exchange and its stock symbol is 'ALICL".

2. Basis of preparation and measurement

The Financial statements of the Company have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting in accordance
with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) as published by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) Nepal
and pronounced by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN).

The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss and the
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows
and the Notes to the Accounts.

2.1 Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
(NFRS) adopted by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) of Nepal. The Financial Statements were
authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 16th October 2020.

The Company has adopted all the NFRS and the adoption was carried out in accordance with NFRS 1,
First Time Adoption of NFRS. Reconciliations and descriptions of the effect of the transition have been
summarized in Notes that follows.

Upto the year ended 31st Ashadh 2074, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance
with the requirements of previous GAAP - Nepal Accounting Standard (NAS) issued by ASB of Nepal and
certain requirements as per directives of Insurance Board of Nepal. These are the Company's first NFRS
adopted financial statements. The date of transition to NFRS is 1st Shrawan 2073. Refer Note 6 for the
details of significant first-time adoption exemptions availed by the Company and an explanation of how
the transition from previous GAAP to NFRS has affected the Company's financial position, performance
and cash flows. The financial statements have been prepared on the going-concern basis

2.2  Reporting period and approval of financial statements
Reporting Period is a period from the first day of Shrawan (mid-July) of any year to the last day of Ashadh
(mid-July) of the following year as per Nepalese calendar. The current year period and corresponding
previous year period is summarized as follows:

Relevant Financial Statement Nepalese Calendar English Calendar
First NFRS SFP Date 32nd Ashadh 2075 16 July 2018

First NFRS reporting period 1 Shrawan 2074 - 32nd Ashadh 2075 | 16 July 2017-16 July 2018
Comparative SFP Date 31 Ashadh 2074 15 July 2017

Transition Date SFP date 1 Shrawan 2073 16 July 2016
Comparative reporting period | 1 Shrawan 2073- 31st Ashadh 2074 | 16 July 2016 -15 July 2017

*SFP: Statement of Financial Position
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 32nd Ashadh 2075

2.3

2.4

25

2.6

2.7

Basis of Measurement

The financial statements are prepared on the historical-cost basis except for investment properties and
the certain financial instruments which are measured at fair value. The carrying values of recognized
assets and liabilities that are designated as hedged items in fair value hedges and that are otherwise
carried at amortised cost, are adjusted to record changes in the fair values attributable to the risks that
are being hedged in effective hedge relationships.

As permitted by IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts, the company continues to apply the existing accounting
policies that were applied prior to the adoptio 6 of IFRS, with certain modifications allowed by the
standard effective subsequent to adoption for its insurance contracts and investment contracts with
a discretionary participation feature (DPF).

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The estimates and judgements
used in the preparation of the financial statements are continuously evaluated by the Company. Any
revision to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in the period in which the estimates are
revised and in the future periods. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in
notes that follow.

Functional and Presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Currency (NPR) (rounded to the nearest Rupee
unless otherwise stated), which is the company's functional currency and the presentation currency
of the parent company.

Use of Estimates, assumptions and judgments

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and the accompanying disclosures, as well as the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Management
believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are prudent and
reasonable Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require
a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.
Information about assumptions and estimation that have a significant risk of resulting in a material
adjustment within the next financial year are:

Key assumptions used in discounted cash flow projections.

Measurement of defined benefit obligations.

Provisions, commitments and contingencies.

Determination of net realizable value.

Determination of useful life of the property, plants and equipment.

Assessment of the Company's ability to continue as going concern.

Determination of fair value of financial instruments; and property and equipment.

Impairment of financial and non-financial assets.

Assessment of current as well as deferred tax.

Changes in accounting policies and comparability

The Company has consistently applied the accounting policies to all periods presented in these financial
statements except for new or revised statements and interpretations implemented during the year.
The nature and effect of new standards and interpretations are discussed in note 2.7.

New Standards in Issue but not yet effective

A number of new standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations have been
issued by IASB after the pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates. Those become applicable
when ASB Nepal incorporates them within NFRS. The standards and interpretations that are issued,
but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Insurance's financial statements are disclosed
below. The Insurance intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they become effective.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 32nd Ashadh 2075

[ IFRS 1- First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards:
Short-term exemptions in paragraphs E3-E7 of IFRS 1 has been deleted, because they have now
served their intended purpose. These are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018.

[ IFRS 2 -Share-based Payment:
The International Accounting Standards Board has published final amendments to IFRS 2 'Share-
based Payment' that clarify the classification and measurement of share-based payment
transactions effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. However, retrospective application
is allowed if this is possible without the use of hindsight. If an entity adopts retrospective
application then, it must do so for all of the amendments described below:

[ Accounting for cash-settled share-based payment transactions that include a performance
condition,

[ Classification of share-based payment transactions with net settlement features,

[ Accounting for modifications of share-based payment transactions from cash-settled to

equity-settled.

| IFRS 4- Insurance Contracts:
The International Accounting Standards Board has published '‘Applying IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments'
with IFRS 4 'Insurance Contracts'. The amendments are intended to address concerns about the
different effective dates of IFRS 9 and the forthcoming new insurance contracts standard IFRS
17. The amendments in Applying IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' with IFRS 4 'Insurance Contracts'
provide two options for entities that issue insurance contracts within the scope of IFRS 4

[ Overlay Approach
[ Deferral Approach

An entity choosing to apply the overlay approach retrospectively to qualifying financial assets
does so when it first applies IFRS 9. An entity choosing to apply the deferral approach does so
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

The International Accounting Standards Board has published a new standard, IFRS 17 'Insurance
contracts' to replace IFRS 4. The new standard requires insurance liabilities to be measured at
a current fulfillment value and provides a more uniform measurement and presentation approach
for all insurance contracts. These requirements are designed to achieve the goal of a consistent,
principle-based accounting for insurance contracts. IFRS 17 supersedes IFRS 4 'Insurance Contracts'
and related interpretations and is effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021, with
earlier adoption permitted if both IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers' and IFRS 9
'Financial Instruments' have also been applied.

[ IFRS 9 Financial Instrument

Finalized version of IFRS 9, incorporating requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment, general hedge accounting and de-recognition which was issued on July 2014. It shall
be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. Accounting Standard Board
of Nepal endorsed NFRS 9 Financial Instruments with some exceptions, mainly in the Impairment.
Currently, Incurred Loss Model as specified in NAS 39 is used. The requirement of IFRS 9 is
Expected Credit Loss Model. The management is still assessing the potential impact on its financial
statements, if Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model is introduced.

| IFRS 17- Insurance Contract:
The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) has published a new standard, IFRS 17
'Insurance contracts'. The new standard requires insurance liabilities to be measured at a current
fulfillment value and provides a more uniform measurement and presentation approach for all
insurance contracts. These requirements are designed to achieve the goal of a consistent,
principle-based accounting for insurance contracts. IFRS 17 supersedes IFRS 4 'Insurance Contracts'
and related interpretations and is effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 32nd Ashadh 2075

2.8

2.9

IAS 12- Income Taxes:

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments has been issued which is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

The IASB has issued 'Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle'. The amendments
clarify that the requirements in the former paragraph 52B (to recognize the income tax
consequences of dividends where the transactions or events that generated distributable profits
are recognized) apply to all income tax consequences of dividends by moving the paragraph
away from paragraph 52A that only deals with situations where there are different tax rates for
distributed and undistributed profits. These amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

[ | IAS 19- Employee Benefits (2011):

The International Accounting Standards Board has published Plan Amendment, Curtailment or

Settlement (Amendments to IAS 19). It is effective on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting

period that begins on or after 1 January 2019. Early application is permitted but must be disclosed.

The amendments in Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendments to IAS 19) are:

u If a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs, it is now mandatory that the
current service cost and the net interest for the period after the remeasurement are
determined using the assumptions used for the remeasurement.

u In addition, amendments have been included to clarify the effect of a plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement on the requirements regarding the asset ceiling.

New Standards and interpretation not adapted
All Nepal Accounting Standards and Nepal Financial Reporting Standards and other interpretation issued
by ASB of Nepal have been adapted while preparing financial statements.

Discounting
Non- current assets and liabilities are discounted where discounting is material.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of these financial statements are
presented below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless stated
otherwise.

31

3.2

Basis of Measurement

The financial statements are prepared on the historical-cost basis except for the following material
items in the statement of financial position:

| Investment property is measured at fair value.

Liabilities for cash-settled, share-based-payment arrangements are measured at fair value.
Available for sale financial assets are measured at fair value.

Investments held-for-trade is measured at fair value.

Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value.

Defined benefit schemes, surpluses and deficits are measured at fair value.

Impairment of asset is measured at fair value and related disposal cost.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The estimates and judgements
used in the preparation of the financial statements are continuously evaluated by the Company. Any
revision to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in the period in which the estimates are
revised and in the future periods. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in
notes that follow.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
3.2.1 Useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment:
Management reviews the useful life and residual values of property, plant and equipment at
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 32nd Ashadh 2075

least once a year. Such life is dependent upon an assessment of both the technical life of the
assets and also their likely economic life, based on various internal and external factors including
relative efficiency and operating costs. Accordingly, depreciable lives are reviewed annually using
the best information available to the Management.

3.2.2 Impairment of property plant and equipment:

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its property,
plant and equipment to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Recoverable amount is the higher
of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Value in use is usually determined on the basis
of discounted estimated future cash flows. This involves management estimates on anticipated
commodity prices, market demand and supply, economic and regulatory environment, discount
rates and other factors. Any subsequent changes to cash flow due to changes in the above-
mentioned factors could impact the carrying value of assets.

3.2.3 Contingencies
In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims
against the Company. Potential liabilities that are possible but not probable of crystallising or
are very difficult to quantify reliably are treated as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are
disclosed in the notes but are not recognized.

3.2.4 Fair Value Measurements

Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes. The management determines the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for
fair value measurements. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the
Company engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The management works
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs to the model.

3.2.5 Tax

The Company is subject to tax laws of Nepal. Income Taxes have been calculated as per the
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 2058. Deferred tax is recorded on temporary differences
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts, at the rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The ultimate realization of deferred
tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable profits during the periods in which
those temporary differences and tax law carryforwards become deductible. The company
considers the expected reversal of deferred tax liabilities and projected future taxable income
making this assessment. The amount of the deferred tax assets considered realisable, however,
could be reduced in the near term if estimates of future taxable income during the carryforward
period are reduced.

3.2.6 Compensated Absences

The cost of the compensated absences and the present value of the compensated absences are
based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate. future salary increases and mortality rates.
Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at
each reporting date.

3.2.7 Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 32nd Ashadh 2075

3.3

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and Measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and
rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax
authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use,
including relevant borrowing costs for qualifying assets and any expected costs of decommissioning
and environmental rehabilitation. Expenditure incurred after the property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss
in the period in which the costs are incurred.

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement
of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Capital Work In Progress

Assets in the course of construction are capitalized in the assets under capital work in progress account
(CWIP). At the point when an asset is operating at management's intended use, the cost of construction
is transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment and depreciation commences.
Where an obligation (legal or constructive) exists to dismantle or remove an asset or restore a site to
its former condition at the end of its useful life, the present value of the estimated cost of dismantling,
removing or restoring the site is capitalized along with the cost of

acquisition or construction upon completion and a corresponding liability is recognized. Revenue
generated from production during the trial period is capitalized.

Significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment that have different useful lives are
accounted for as separate items (major components). When part of an asset is being replaced, the
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. If an item of property, plant and equipment is
received from customers, an assessment is made to whether that item of property, plant and equipment
can be recognized in accordance with NAS 16 Property, plant and equipment. Any related revenue is
recognized in accordance with NAS 18: Revenue.

Property, plant and equipment except freehold land held for use in the production, supply or administrative
purposes, are stated in the statement of financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Freehold or Leasehold land is stated at historical cost.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties
under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method.
Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful
life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Lease improvement costs are amortized over the period of the lease. Leasehold land acquired by the
Company, with an option in the lease deed, entitling the Company to purchase on outright basis after
a certain period at no additional cost is not amortized.

The estimated useful life, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate and policies accounted for on a prospective
basis and retrospective basis respectively.

Estimated useful life of the assets are as follows:

Class of Property, Plant And Equipment Useful Life Rate of Depreciation
Building & Structures 20 years 5%
Plant and Equipment 6.66 years 15%
Office Equipment 4 years 25%
Vehicles 5years 20%
Furnitures and Fixtures 4 years 25%
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 32nd Ashadh 2075

The depreciation method, residual values and useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each reporting date. Gains or losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is recognized in profit or loss within other income or other expenses. Projects in works
under construction that have been discontinued are written off and included in other expenses.

3.4 Intangible Assets
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or
at the cash generating unit level. Such intangibles are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible
asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite life assessment
continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite
is made on a prospective basis.

The intangible asset is amortised over the useful life of the acquired in-force policy during which future
premiums are expected, which typically varies between five and 50 years. Changes in the expected
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset
are accounted for by changing the amortization period and they are treated as a change in an accounting
estimate.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the income
statement when the asset is derecognized.

An impairment review is performed whenever there is an indication of impairment. When the recoverable
amount is less than the carrying value, an impairment loss is recognized in the income statement. PVIF
is also considered in the liability adequacy test for each reporting period.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any
indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such indication exists, the company makes an estimate of the asset's or Cash Generating Unit's
recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount.
That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
amortization, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is
recognized in the income statement unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case, the
reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Certain computer software costs are capitalized and recognized as intangible assets based on materiality,
accounting prudence and significant benefits expected to flow therefrom for a period longer than one
year.

3.5 Impairment of non-financial assets
At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized immediately
in Statement of Profit and Loss.
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3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Deferred Expenses

Deferred Acquisition Cost (DAC)

Those direct and indirect costs incurred during the financial period arising from the writing or renewing
of insurance contracts, are deferred to the extent that these costs are recoverable out of future premiums.
All other acquisition costs are recognized as an expense when incurred.

Deferred expenses - Reinsurance commissions
Commissions receivable on outwards reinsurance contracts are deferred and amortised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the expected premiums payable.

Investment Properties

Investment properties shall be measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying
amount shall include the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that cost
is incurred if the recognition criteria are met; and excludes the costs of day-to-day servicing of an
investment property. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties shall be stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the reporting date. Gains or losses arising from changes in
the fair values of investment properties shall be included in the income statement in the year in which
they arise.

Fair values shall be evaluated annually by an accredited external, independent valuer, applying a
valuation model recommended by the International Valuation Standards Committee.

Investment properties shall be derecognized either when they have been disposed of, or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected
from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property shall be
recognized in the income statement in the year of retirement or disposal.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, shall be added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs shall be recognized in Statement of Profit and
Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are actively traded in organized financial markets is determined
by reference to quoted market bid prices for assets and offer prices for liabilities, at the close of business
on the reporting date, without any deduction for transaction costs.

For all other financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined by using
appropriate valuation techniques. Valuation techniques include the discounted cash flow method,
comparison to similar instruments for which market observable prices exist, options pricing models,
credit models and other relevant valuation models.

For discounted cash flow techniques, estimated future cash flows are based on management's best
estimates and the discount rate used is a market-related rate for a similar instrument. The use of
different pricing models and assumptions could produce materially different estimates of fair values.

If the fair value cannot be measured reliably, these financial instruments are measured at cost, being
the fair value of the consideration paid for the acquisition of the investment or the amount received
on issuing the financial liability. All transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition are also
included in the cost of the investment.

Re-insurance
The company cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business for all of its businesses. Reinsurance

111" Annual Report Book



ASAAN:

I
AV Company
aT A wdw A gee...

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 32nd Ashadh 2075

assets represent balances due from reinsurance companies. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are
estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision or settled claims associated
with the reinsurer's policies and are in accordance with the related reinsurance contract.

Reinsurance assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date, or more frequently, when an
indication of impairment arises during the reporting year. Impairment occurs when there is objective
evidence as a result of an event that occurred after initial recognition of the reinsurance asset that the
Group may not receive all outstanding amounts due under the terms of the contract and the event has
a reliably measurable impact on the amounts that the Group will receive from the reinsurer. The
impairment loss is recorded in the income statement.

Gains or losses on buying reinsurance are recognized in the income statement immediately at the date
of purchase and are not amortised.

Ceded reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the company from its obligations to policyholders.

The Group also assumes reinsurance risk in the normal course of business for life insurance and non-
life insurance contracts where applicable. Premiums and claims on assumed reinsurance are recognized
as revenue or expenses in the same manner as they would be if the reinsurance were considered direct
business, taking into account the product classification of the reinsured business. Reinsurance liabilities
represent balances due to reinsurance companies. Amounts payable are estimated in a manner
consistent with the related reinsurance contract.

Premiums and claims are presented on a gross basis for both ceded and assumed reinsurance.

Reinsurance assets or liabilities are derecognized when the contractual rights are extinguished or expire
or when the contract is transferred to another party.

Reinsurance contracts that do not transfer significant insurance risk are accounted for directly through
the statement of financial position. These are deposit assets or financial liabilities that are recognized
based on the consideration paid or received less any explicit identified premiums or fees to be retained
by the reinsured. Investment income on these contracts is accounted for using the effective interest
rate method when accrued.

3.11 Insurance receivables
Insurance receivables are recognized when due and measured on initial recognition at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable. Subsequent to initial recognition, insurance receivables are
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. The carrying value of insurance
receivables is reviewed for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable, with the impairment loss recorded in the income statement.

3.12 Revenue Recognition

Gross premiums
Gross recurring premiums on life insurance contracts are recognized as revenue when payable by the
policyholder. For single premium business, revenue is recognized on the date on which the policy is effective.

Gross general insurance written premiums comprise the total premiums receivable for the whole period
of cover provided by contracts entered into during the accounting period. They are recognized on the
date on which the policy commences. Premiums include any adjustments arising in the accounting
period for premiums receivable in respect of business written in prior accounting periods. Rebates that
form part of the premium rate, such as no-claim rebates, are deducted from the gross premium; others
are recognized as an expense. Premiums collected by intermediaries, but not yet received, are assessed
based on estimates from underwriting or past experience and are included in premiums written.

Unearned premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to periods of risk
after the reporting date. Unearned premiums are calculated on a daily pro rata basis. The proportion
attributable to subsequent periods is deferred as a provision for unearned premiums.

3.13 Fees and commission income
Insurance contract policyholders are charged for policy administration services, investment management
services, surrenders and other contract fees. These fees are recognized as revenue over the period in
which the related services are performed. If the fees are for services provided in future periods, then
they are deferred and recognized over those future periods.
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3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

Investment income

Interest income is recognized in the income statement as it accrues and is calculated by using the
effective interest rate method. Fees and commissions that are an integral part of the effective yield of
the financial asset or liability are recognized as an adjustment to the effective interest rate of the
instrument.

Interest income is recognized in the income statement as it accrues and is calculated by using the
effective interest rate method. Fees and commissions that are an integral part of the effective yield of
the financial asset or liability are recognized as an adjustment to the effective interest rate of the
instrument.

Realized Gains and losses

Realized gains and losses recorded in the income statement on investments include gains and losses
on financial assets and fixed assets. Gains and losses on the sale of investments are calculated as the
difference between net sales proceeds and the original or amortized cost and are recorded on occurrence
of the sale transaction.

Benefits, claims and expenses recognition

Gross benefits and claims

Gross benefits and claims for life insurance contracts and for investment contracts with DPF include
the cost of all claims arising during the year, including internal and external claims handling costs that
are directly related to the processing and settlement of claims and policyholder bonuses declared on
DPF contracts. Changes in the gross valuation of insurance and investment contract liabilities with DPF
are also included. Death claims and surrenders are recorded on the basis of notifications received.
Maturities and annuity payments are recorded when due.

General insurance and health claims include all claims occurring during the year, whether reported or
not, related internal and external claims handling costs that are directly related to the processing and
settlement of claims, a reduction for the value of salvage and other recoveries, and any adjustments
to claims outstanding from previous years.

Finance cost

Interest paid is recognized in the income statement as it accrues and is calculated by using the effective
interest rate method. Accrued interest is included within the carrying value of the interest-bearing
financial liability.

Employee Benefits

Contributions to Provident Fund

Contributions to provident fund are deposited monthly to the Employee's Provident Fund. The provident
fund is in the nature of Defined Contribution Plan whereby there are no further obligations of the
Company except the monthly contributions made to the Trust. Contributions made to the Trust are
recognized as expense on accrual basis.

Contribution to Gratuity Fund

The contribution to the gratuity fund is in the nature of Defined Contribution Plan whereby there are
no further obligations of the Company except the monthly contributions made to the Trust. Contributions
made to the Trust are recognized as expense on accrual basis.

Compensated Absences

The employees of the company are entitled to compensated absences. The employees can carry forward
a portion of the unutilised accumulating compensated absences and utilise it in future periods or receive
cash at the end of the financial year or at retirement or termination of employment. The company
records an obligation for compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the
services that increases this entitlement. The company measures the expected cost of compensated
absences as the additional amount that the company expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement
that has accumulated at the end of the reporting period. The company recognises accumulated
compensated absences based on acturial valuation using the projected unit credit method. Non-
accumulating compensated absences are recognized in the period in which the absences occur.
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Short Term Benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are recorded as
expense as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid
under short-term cash bonus, if the company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

3.19 Taxation
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of
profit and loss except to the extent it relates to items directly recognized in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

Current Tax

Current tax is the amount of tax payable based on the taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs
from 'profit before tax' as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute
the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date in the countries
where the Group operates and generates taxable income. Current income tax assets and liabilities also
include adjustments for tax expected to be payable or recoverable in respect of previous periods.
Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income is
recognized in equity or other comprehensive income and not in the income statement. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions, where appropriate.

The income tax charge is analyzed between tax in respect of policyholders' returns and the balance
which represents the tax on equity holders' returns. The income tax charge in respect of policyholders'
returns reflects the movement in current and deferred income tax recognized in respect of those items
of income, gains and expenses, which inure to the benefit of policyholders.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences arising between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date and that are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realized or the deferred tax
liability is settled. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reversed if it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefits will be realized. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting
date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilized except:

i Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

ii. In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss.
Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority.
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3.20

3.21

3.22

3.23

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year is adjusted for treasury shares, bonus issue, bonus element in a rights
issue to existing shareholders.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year as adjusted for dividend,
interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive
potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic
earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued
on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be
dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing
ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning
of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date.

Leasing Arrangements

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance
of the arrangement at the inception date and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right
to use the asset, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Company as a Lessee:

Finance leases that transfer to the company substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the
leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized in finance cost
in the income statement.

Leased assets are depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable
certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated
over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Leases that do not transfer to the company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership
of the leased items are operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in
the income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals are recognized
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value, including necessary provision for
obsolescence. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and includes expenditure incurred in
acquiring inventories, production and conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing inventory
to its present location and condition.

Foreign currency translation
The company determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements
of the entity are measured using that functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate prevailing at the
date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional
currency rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. All differences are taken to the income statement
with the exception of differences on foreign monetary items that form part of a net investment in a
foreign operation. These are recognized in other comprehensive income until the disposal of the net
investment, at which time they are recognized in the income statement.

Tax changes and credits attributable to exchange differences on these items are also recorded in other
comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
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using the exchange rate as at the date of the initial transaction and are not subsequently restated. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value was determined.

3.24 Insurance contract Liabilities:

The provision for unearned premiums represents that portion of premiums received or receivable that
relates to risks that have not yet expired at the reporting date. The provision is recognized when contracts
are entered into and premiums are charged and is brought to account as premium income over the
term of the contract in accordance with the pattern of insurance service provided under the contract.
At each reporting date, the company reviews its unexpired risk and a liability adequacy test is performed
in accordance with GAAP to determine whether there is any overall excess of expected claims and
deferred acquisition costs over unearned premiums. This calculation uses current estimates of future
contractual cash flows after taking account of the investment return expected to arise on assets relating
to the relevant non-life insurance technical provisions. If these estimates show that the carrying amount
of the unearned premiums (less related deferred acquisition costs) is inadequate, the deficiency is
recognized in the income statement by setting up a provision for premium deficiency.

3.25 Provisions, Contingencies and Commitments
Provisions and contingencies
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of a past event, when it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation
and when the amount can be reliably estimated.
The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the
time value of money is material).
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognized as asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will
be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is:
[ a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only

by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the entity; or

[ present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because:

[ it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation; or

[ | the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the entity.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion
of assets.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each reporting
period.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the
Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under
the contract.

Onerous Contracts

A provision is recognized for onerous contracts in which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations
under the contract exceed the expected economic benefits expected to be received under it. The
unavoidable costs reflect the least net cost of exiting the contract, which is the lower of the cost of
fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfil it.

11" Annual Report Book | \ 19



ASAAN

qET At adie A e

Life

Insurance
Company

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 32nd Ashadh 2075

3.26 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.26.1 Financial assets

20 /

Initial Recognition

Financial assets are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments. Financial assets other than trade receivables are initially recognized at fair
value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value,
and transaction costs are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets, other than equity instruments, are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis
of both:

u the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and

L] the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

A financial asset is derecognized when the rights under the agreement are realized or have
expired, or when control of the contractual rights is lost. The same applies to a portion of a
financial asset. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged or otherwise expires.

Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised
cost (except for debt instruments that are designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition):

[ the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and
[ the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (except for debt instruments that are designated as fair
value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

L] the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and
u the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Interest income is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss for FVTOCI debt instruments. The
changes in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognized in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of ‘Reserve for debt instruments through other comprehensive
income’. When the investment is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in this reserve is reclassified to Retained Earnings.
All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that
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form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognized on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss and
is included in the “Other income” line item.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by
instrument basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income
pertaining to investments in equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the equity
investment is held for trading. These elected investments are initially measured at fair value plus
transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising
from changes in fair value recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
‘Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income’. The cumulative gain or
loss is reclassified to Retained Earnings and Loss on disposal of the investments.

Afinancial asset is held for trading if:

[ it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

[ on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the
Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

[ itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial
guarantee.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognized in Statement of Profit and
Loss when the Company’s right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not
represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be
measured reliably. Dividends recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss are included in the
‘Other income’ line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises a loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECL) on financial assets
that are measured at amortised cost and at FVOCI. The credit loss is difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective
interest rate. This is assessed on an individual or collective basis after considering all reasonable
and supportable including that which is forward-looking.

The Company’s trade receivables or contract revenue receivables do not contain significant
financing component and loss allowance on trade receivables is measured at an amount equal
to life time expected losses i.e. expected cash shortfall, being simplified approach for recognition
of impairment loss allowance.

For financial assets other than trade receivables, the Company recognises 12-months expected
credit losses for all originated or acquired financial assets if at the reporting date the credit risk
of the financial asset has not increased significantly since its initial recognition. The expected
credit losses are measured as lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on financial asset
increases significantly since its initial recognition. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer significant increase in credit risks since initial
recognition, then the Company reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12
months ECL. The impairment losses and reversals are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.
For equity instruments and financial assets measured at FVTPL, there is no requirement for
impairment testing.

Derecognition of financial assets
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards

11" Annual Report Book | A\ 21



ASAAN

T AT AR AT G

Life

Insurance
Company

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 32nd Ashadh 2075

of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial
asset and also recognises a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received. On derecognition
of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognized in Statement
of Profit and Loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognized in Statement of
Profit and Loss on disposal of that financial asset.

3.26.2 Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments

22 /

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a Company entity are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Company entity are recognized
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
All Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using effective interest method or fair
value through profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or is
designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

[ | it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

[ on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the
Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL
upon initial recognition if:

[ such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise;
[ the financial liability forms part of a Company of financial assets or financial liabilities or

both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Company’s documented risk management or investment strategy, and information
about the Company is provided internally on that basis; or
[ it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and NFRS 9
permits the entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with
NFRS 9
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss recognized in
Statement of Profit and Loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included
in the ‘Other income' line item.
However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is recognized in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes
in the liability's credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss, in which case these effects of changes in credit risk are recognized in
Statement of Profit and Loss. The remaining amount of change in the fair value of liability is always
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recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s
credit risk that are recognized in other comprehensive income are reflected immediately in retained
earnings and are not subsequently reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured
at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial
liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective
interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included
in the ‘Finance costs’ line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange with a lender of debt instruments with
substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability
and the recognition of a new financial liability.

Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not
attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the
original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable
is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.27 Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Statement of
Financial Position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

3.28 Insurance Payables

Insurance payables are recognized when due and measured on initial recognition at the fair value of
the consideration received less directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Derecognition insurance payables
Insurance payables are derecognized when the obligation under the liability is settled, cancelled or
expired.

3.29 Share-based payment transactions

In situations where equity instruments are issued and some or all of the goods or services received by
the entity as consideration cannot be specifically identified, the unidentified goods or services received
(or to be received) are measured as the difference between the fair value of the share-based payment
transaction and the fair value of any identifiable goods or services received at the grant date.

3.30 Equity movements
Ordinary share capital
The company has issued ordinary shares that are classified as equity instruments. Incremental external
costs that are directly attributable to the issue of these shares are recognized in equity, net of tax.

Dividends on ordinary share capital

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when they are approved
by the Company’s shareholders. Interim dividends are deducted from equity when they are paid.

Dividends for the year that are approved after the reporting date are dealt with as an event after the
reporting date.
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3.31

3.32

Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each reporting date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
[ In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

[ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

Cash Flow Statement:

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows.
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Cash and cash equivalent:

Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Financial Position comprise cash at banks and on hand
and demand deposits with an original maturity of three months or less and highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value.

Explanatory Notes
The explanatory notes and significant disclosure relating to the financial statements are as follows:

41

Property Plant and Equipment

Particulars As at 32nd Ashadh 2075 | As at 31st Ashadh 2074 | As at 1st Shrawan 2073
Carrying amounts of:

Land 408,850,000 408,850,000 352,500,000
Building 19,481,204 20,506,531 21,585,822
Computer and Accessories 6,796,878 6,541,760 6,971,067
Office Equipments 5,018,789 2,851,503 2,284,016
Vehicles 23,020,550 29,400,175 28,134,150
Furniture & Fixture 5,107,401 4,296,887 4,144,428
Other Assets 77,926 138,316 170,235
Total 468,352,750 472,585,171 415,789,718
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4.2 Intangible Assets

Particulars Amount

Cost

Balance as on 1st Shrawan 2073 5,879,817
Addition during the Year 250,000
Disposal during the year

Adjustment/Revaluation

Balance as on 31st Ashadh 2074 6,129,817
Addition during the Year

Disposal during the year

Adjustment/Revaluation

Balance as on 32nd Ashadh 2075 6,129,817
Amortization and Impairment -
Balance as on 1st Shrawan 2073 2,719,348
Amortization charge for the Year 343,768
Impairment for the year

Disposals

Balance as on 31st Ashadh 2074 3,063,116
Amortization charge for the Year 553,514
Impairment for the year

Disposals

Balance as on 32nd Ashadh 2075 3,616,630
Net Book Value as on 31st Ashadh 2073 3,160,469
Net Book Value as on 31st Ashadh 2074 3,066,701
Net Book Value as on 32nd Ashadh 2075 2,513,187

4.3 Investment Properties

There were no investment properties of the Company during the presented financial years.

4.4 Financial Investment

Particulars As at 32nd As at 31st As at 1st
Ashadh 2075 Ashadh 2074 Shrawan 2073
Investment measured at amortized cost 11,001,794,156 7,998,179,693 6,396,505,877
Investment in equity shares measured at FVTOCI 1,046,450,498 843,315,060 845,391,770
Investment in equity shares measured at FVTPL - -
Total 12,048,244,654 8,841,494,753 7,241,897,647

26 /
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Particulars As at 32nd As at 31st As at 1st
Ashadh 2075 Ashadh 2074 Shrawan 2073
Fixed Deposits 10,112,500,000 7,207,500,000 5,645,000,000
Corporate Debentures 581,577,000 481,577,000 481,577,000
Government Securities & Securities Guaranteed 209,350,000 209,350,000 209,350,000
by Government
Interest Receivables on Investments 98,367,156 99,752,693 60,578,877
Total 11,001,794,156 7,998,179,693 6,396,505,877
4.4.2 Investment in equity shares measured at FVTOCI
Investment in Shares Measured at FVTOCI A?;:;: 22':)(7’5 A::aadthB;(s); 4 Shgw;r:;'(:)n
Quoted 955,474,556 708,567,272 747,451,605
Unquoted 6,769,200 20,240,444 7,696,100
Total 962,243,756 728,807,716 755,147,705
Investment in Mutual Fund
Quoted 84,206,742 114,507,344 90,244,065
Unquoted - - -
Total 84,206,742 114,507,344 90,244,065
Grand Total 1,046,450,498 843,315,060 845,391,770
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For the Year ended 32nd Ashadh 2075

4.5 Loan measured at amortized cost

Particulars As at 32nd As at 31st As at 1st
Ashadh 2075 Ashadh 2074 Shrawan 2073
Loan to Staff 50,587,805 59,497,194 32,998,354
Loan to Agent 49,115,467 47,508,473 47,427,995
Loan against Policy 822,420,289 455,358,478 284,150,285
Less: Impairment for Financial Assets (7,975,782) (6,366,935) (2,373,459)
Total 914,147,779 555,997,210 362,203,175
4.6  Financial Assets
Particulars As at 32nd As at 31st As at 1st
Ashadh 2075 Ashadh 2074 Shrawan 2073
Deposits 1,350,832 1,265,412 1,262,912
Receivables from Re insurer - - 475,659
Total 1,350,832 1,265,412 1,738,571
4.7 Other Assets
Particulars As at 32nd As at 31st As at 1st
Ashadh 2075 Ashadh 2074 Shrawan 2073
Staff Advance -Short term 190,710,185 335,516,814 354,925,341
Advance payments 1,558,679 1,543,275 4,036,045
Other 2,532,122 2,532,122 16,532,122
Deferred Employee Expenditure 8,914,888 6,103,986 592,861
Inventories 100,020 66,640 99,526
Total 203,815,894 345,762,837 376,185,896
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For the Year ended 32nd Ashadh 2075

Current Year

Particulars Deferred Tax De'ferr"e.d' Tax Net Defe'rre'd. Tax
Assets Liabilities Assets/(Liabilities)

Deferred Tax on Temporary differences on following items

Property and equipment 2,112.66 | (62,484,662.50) | (62,482,549.84)

Investment Properties

Investment Securities 77,263,140 77,263,139.66

Employees' defined benefit plan 7,275,903 7,275,903.00

Leave liabilities 6,343,654 6,343,654.25

Provisions

Other temporary differences

Deferred Tax on Temporary differences 90,884,810 (62,484,663) 28,400,147

Deferred Tax on carry forward of unused tax losses

Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate

Net Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on year end of 2074/75 28,400,147

Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on 1st shrawan1 2074 (29,262,185)

Origination/(Reversal) during the year (57,662,332)

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in profit or loss (13,179,551)

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in other (44,482,781)

comprehensive income

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized directly in equity

Deferred Tax

Privious Year

Particulars Deferred Tax De_ferrqd_ Tax Net Defe.rre.d- 'I:ax
Assets Liabilities Assets/(Liabilities)

Deferred Tax on Temporary differences on following items -

Property and equipment - | (62,484,662.50) (62,484,663)

Investment Properties -

Investment Securities 23,520,980 23,520,980

Employees' defined benefit plan 4,946,492 4,946,492

Leave liabilities 4,755,006 4,755,006

Provisions -

Other temporary differences -

Deferred Tax on Temporary differences 33,222,477 (62,484,663) (29,262,185)

Deferred Tax on carry forward of unused tax losses -

Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate -

Net Deferred tax asset / (liabilities) as on year end of 2073/74 - (29,262,185)

Deferred tax asset / (liabilities) as on 1st Shrawan, 2073 - (92,376,088)

Origination/(Reversal) during the year - (63,113,903)

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in profit or loss - (18,465,750)

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized in other - (44,648,153)

comprehensive income

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized directly in equity
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4.9 Current tax assets

Particulars As at 32nd As at 31st As at 1st
Ashadh 2075 Ashadh 2074 Shrawan 2073
Current tax assets
Current year income tax assets 523,415,073 362,432,422 270,121,312
Tax assets of prior periods
Total 523,415,073 362,432,422 270,121,312
Current tax Liabilities
Current year income tax liabilities
Tax Liabilities of prior periods
Total
Grand Total 523,415,073 362,432,422 270,121,312
4.10 Insurance receivables
There have been no insurance receivables during the presented years.
411 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Particulars As at 32nd As at 31st As at 1st
Ashadh 2075 Ashadh 2074 Shrawan 2073
Bank Balances 561,054,957 644,832,542 484,779,047
Cash 135,120,910 143,081,470 53,071,276
Total 696,175,867 787,914,012 537,850,323
4.12 Equity Share Capital
e T As at 32nd Ashadh 2075 | As at 31st Ashadh 2074 | As at 1st Shrawan 2073
No of Shares| Amount |NoofShares| Amount |No ofShares| Amount
A. Equity Shares
Authorized
Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each | 12,567,255 |1,256,725,454| 8,055,933 | 805,593,240 6,713,277 | 671,327,700
with voting rights
Issued
Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each | 12,567,255 |1,256,725,454| 8,055,933 | 805,593,240 6,713,277 | 671,327,700
with voting rights
Subscribed and Fully Paid
Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each | 12,567,255 |1,256,725,454| 8,055,933 | 805,593,240 6,713,277 | 671,327,700
with voting rights
Total Paid Up Capital 1,256,725,454 805,593,240 671,327,700
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4.13 Other Equity

AL AL G DT Ag;:;r? 22'(1)(7’5 AsAhsazlthB;ts)tu Shrl'-\;;vaatr: e
Share Premium 58,819,718 - -
Retained Earnings (11,575,430) 54,498,844 150,929,575
Regulatory Reserve 168,326,135 90,134,233 36,633,744
FV Reserve (146,051,120) (18,888,584) 14,367,685
Actuarial Reserve (9,427,334) (3,141,528) -
Revaluation Reserve 18,745,399 18,745,399 15,569,149
Deferred Tax Reserve 28,400,147 - -
Catastrophe Reserve 37,249,887 37,249,887 31,225,704
Total 144,487,400 178,598,251 248,725,856
4.14 Insurance Contract Liabilities
Particulars As at 32nd As at 31st As at 1st
Ashadh 2075 Ashadh 2074 Shrawan 2073

Insurance Liability 11,329,034,931 9,032,519,514 6,819,457,726
Provision for bonus 1,159,967,434 851,586,359 654,392,113
Un allocable Surplus 516,475,262 116,005,528 270,475,599
Provision for unexpired risk reserve 1,174,503 130,613 -
Provision for Outstanding Claim 13,446,950 11,843,850 8,649,133
Fair Value Reserve - - 129,309,163
Revaluation Reserve 168,708,589 168,708,589 140,122,339
Total 13,188,807,669 | 10,180,794,453 8,022,406,072
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Particulars As at 32nd As at 31st As at 1st
Ashadh 2075 Ashadh 2074 Shrawan 2073
Liability for Defined Benefit Obligation (Gratuity) 26,810,327 17,643,094 11,171,485
Leave encashment liability 18,593,234 12,683,416 8,220,474
Total 45,403,561 30,326,510 19,391,959
4.16 Borrowings
There have been no borrowings during the presented years.
4.17 Financial Liabilities
Particulars As at 32nd As at 31st As at 1st
Ashadh 2075 Ashadh 2074 Shrawan 2073
Liability towards Staff 1,609,259 1,847,337 3,090,749
Liability towards Agent 137,369,318 72,077,184 79,406,204
Liability towards Reinsurer 9,028,264 4,345,457 -
Total 148,006,841 78,269,979 82,496,953
4.18 Provisions
Particulars As at 32nd As at 31st As at 1st
Ashadh 2075 Ashadh 2074 Shrawan 2073
Provision for Dividend
Provision for Employee Bonus 10,194 5,092,560 15,384,004
Provision for unexpired risk
Provision for Investment
Total 10,194 5,092,560 15,384,004
4.19 Other Liabilities
Particulars As at 32nd As at 31st As at 1st
Ashadh 2075 Ashadh 2074 Shrawan 2073
Sundry Creditors 16,084,540 16,914,850 13,542,905
Other Payables 54,377,253 30,240,346 25,753,136
TDS payables 32,513,271 15,426,145 17,542,438
Total 102,975,064 62,581,342 56,838,479
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4.20 Gross Premiums

Direct Insurance Re-insurance Premium Gross insurance
Premium (Accepted) Premium
Particulars For the year | For the year | For the year | For the year | For the year | For the year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
32nd Ashadh | 31st Ashadh |32nd Ashadh | 31st Ashadh | 32nd Ashadh | 31st Ashadh
2075 2074 2075 2074 2075 2074
Asian Endowment 1,147,522,169| 748,526,448 -1 1,147,522,169| 748,526,448
Money back Policy 239,238,943| 191,877,172 239,238943| 191,877,172
Child Endowment 1,008,620,697| 841,844,653 -| 1,008,620,697 | 841,844,653
Endowment and Whole Life| 621,901,100| 511,542,598 621,901,100 | 511,542,598
Micro Endowment 1,830,100 162,620 1,830,100 162,620
Total 3,019,113,009 | 2,293,953,491 - -1 3,019,113,009 | 2,293,953,491
4.21 Premium Ceded to Re-insurers
Premium Ceded to Re-insurers
Type of Insurance For the year ended For the year ended
32nd Ashadh 2075 31st Ashadh 2074
Asian Endowment 8,804,950 5,040,943
Money back Policy 1,835,683 1,292,195
Child Endowment 7,739,157 5,669,393
Endowment and Whole Life 4,771,854 3,444,978
Micro Endowment 14,042 1,095
Total 23,165,687 15,448,603
4.22 Fees and Commission Income
There have been no Fees and Commission Income during the presented years.
4.23 Investment Income
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
32nd Ashadh 2075 31st Ashadh 2074
Rental Income from investment properties -
Income from government securities 6,921,015 7,275,586
Income from deposits in commercial banks 902,471,363 512,288,704
Income from deposits in development banks 63,834,532 7,303,906
Income from deposits in financial institutions 2,607,124 1,695,820
Dividends received from public companies 38,580,002 4,661,053
Income from debentures in banks and finance institutions 44,189,748 40,645,816
Income from loans (granted to policy holders) 41,861,603 25,644,568
Income from other deposits 13,336,046 12,312,084
Total 1,113,801,432 611,827,538
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4.24 Net Realized Gains and Losses

Particulars

For the year ended
32nd Ashadh 2075

For the year ended
31st Ashadh 2074

Property, plant and equipment

Realized gains and losses 1,485,541 -
Equity securities

Realised gains - 169,686,344
Realised losses (52,648,499) -
Total (51,162,958) 169,686,344

4.25 Fair Value Gains and Losses

There have been no fair value gains and losses during the presented years.

4.26 Other Income

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars 32nd Ashadh 2075 31st Ashadh 2074

Interest Income 9,352,640 3,796,360
Provision Write Back 80,848,038 2,373,459
Miscellaneous Income 22,091,032 25,344,368
Total 112,291,709 31,514,187
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Total Service Charge Re - insurer portion Net Service Charge
Particulars For the year | For the year | For the year | For the year | For the year | For the year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
32nd Ashadh | 31st Ashadh [32nd Ashadh| 31st Ashadh | 32nd Ashadh | 31st Ashadh
2075 2074 2075 2074 2075 2074
Asian Endowment 11,475,222 7,485,264 88,049 50,409 | 11,387,172 7,434,855
Money back Policy 2,392,389 1,918,772 18,357 12,922 2,374,033 1,905,850
Child Endowment 10,086,207 8,418,447 77,392 56,694 | 10,008,815 8,361,753
Endowment and Whole Life 6,219,011 5,115,426 47,719 34,450 6,171,292 5,080,976
Micro Endowment 18,301 1,626 140 11 18,161 1,615
Total 30,191,130 | 22,939,535 231,657 154,486 | 29,959,473 | 22,785,049

4.30 Maedical Fee

For the year ended

For the year ended

LGl Ly 32nd Ashadh 2075 31st Ashadh 2074
Asian Endowment 849,225 500,984
Money back Policy 186,351 214,609
Child Endowment 686,694 745,449
Endowment and Whole Life 380,423 252,094
Micro Endowment 12,960

Total 2,115,653 1,713,136

4.31 Agent Commission
On First Year Premium | On Renewal Premium On Single Premium Total Commission
Particulars For the year | For the year | For the year | For the year | For the year | For the year | For the year | For the year
ended 32nd | ended 31st | ended 32nd | ended 31st | ended 32nd | ended 31st | ended 32nd | ended 31st
Ashadh 2075 |Ashadh 2074|Ashadh 2075|Ashadh 2074 |Ashadh 2075 |Ashadh 2074|Ashadh 2075|Ashadh 2074
Asian Endowment | 63,665147| 39,111,569 | 43,617,016| 38,971,245| 13,967,090 -1121,249,253| 78,082,814
Money back Policy | 17,445,842 11,995,763 | 14,164,045| 12,892,177 -1 31,609,887 | 24,887,940
Child Endowment | 61,063,068 | 40,694,681| 51,770,359 48,109,234 -1112,833,427| 88,803,915
Endowment and 40,387,678 | 30,141,275| 34,716,752 | 31,277,859 -| 75104,430| 61,419,134
Whole Life -
Micro Endowment 151,296 - 151,296
Total 182,713,031 | 121,943,288 | 144,268,172 | 131,250,515 | 13,967,090 -1 340,948,293 | 253,193,803
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4.32 Finance Costs

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
32nd Ashadh 2075 31st Ashadh 2074

Interest expense on bank overdraft 4,632,137 7,672,322

Total 4,632,137 7,672,322

4.33 Other operating and administrative expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars 32nd Ashadh 2075 31st Ashadh 2074
Acquisition related transaction costs 1,325,300 1,006,765
Depreciation on property and equipment 11,663,745 9,280,059
Amortization of intangible assets 553,514 343,768
Rent Expenses 13,089,283 11,469,544
BOD expenses 762,272 524,160
Other Committee expenses 798,901 693,505
Auditors’' remuneration 452,000 407,592
AGM Expenses 231,033 -
Bank Charge 102,589 94,824
Repair and maintenance expenses 1,212,842 623,385
Reinsurance expenses 702,770 1,134,229
Agent Expenses 135,568,482 72,211,706
Expenses related to corporate social responsibility 41,321 252,998
Provision Expenses 80,682,844 6,366,935
Other administrative expenses 47,440,548 39,099,064
Total 294,627,444 143,508,534
4.34 Employee Benefit expense
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
32nd Ashadh 2075 31st Ashadh 2074
Wages and salaries 191,456,010 139,680,032
Gratuity expense 5,841,401 2,282,905
Leave expense 10,663,432 4,462,942
Employee Bonus Expenses 10,194 5,092,560

Total employee benefits expense

207,971,036

151,518,439
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4.35 Earnings Per Share

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
32nd Ashadh 2075 31st Ashadh 2074
Profit for the year 91,397,347 104,426,089
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding 12,567,255 12,567,255*
Earnings Per Share (Rs.) - Basic 7.27 8.31
(Face value of Rs. 100 per share)
Add: Weighted average number of potential equity shares - -
Weighted average number of Equity shares - -
(including dilutive shares) outstanding
Earnings Per Share (Rs.) - Diluted 7.27 8.31
(Face value of Rs. 100 per share)

Bonus Share was issued in 2074-75 and for basic EPS, effect was carried back to FY 2073 as per NAS 33.

5. Disclosure and Additional information

5.1
5.1.1

5.1.2

Risk Management

Insurance Risk

The principal risk the Company faces under insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit
payments or the timing thereof, may differ from expectations. This is influenced by the frequency of
claims, severity of claims and actual benefits paid. Therefore, the objective of the Company is to ensure
that sufficient reserves are available to cover these liabilities. The risk exposure is mitigated by
diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts and geographical areas. The variability of
risks is also improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting strategy guidelines, as
well as the use of reinsurance arrangements. Various life insurance products are offered by the Company
which are primarily categorized into Term Policy, Endowment Policy, Money Back Policy and Endowment
cum Whole life policy. Products other than Term Policy have been designed to reduce the market and
credit risks. Under Endowment, Money Back and Endowment cum whole life policy, risks are largely
passed on to the policyholder. Partly, there is risk to the company in its income if the fund values
decrease. Insurance products carry mortality risk and also market risk to the extent that there are
guarantees built into the product design.

The main risks that the Company is exposed at the time of designing products are as follows

Type of Risks Nature

Mortality risk Risk of loss arising due to policyholders' death experience being different
from expected
Investment return risk Risk of loss arising from actual returns being different from expected

Policyholder decision risk Risk of loss arising due to policyholders' experiences (lapses and surrenders)
being different from expected

The Company also enters into reinsurance arrangement according to its Reinsurance Policy. Generally,
20% of the insurance policies are reinsured as a part of the policy. Although the Company has reinsurance
arrangements, it is not relieved of its direct obligations to its policyholders and thus a credit exposure
exists with respect to ceded insurance, to the extent that any reinsurer is unable to meet its obligations
assumed under such reinsurance agreements.

The following tables show the concentration of life insurance contract liabilities by types of contracts.

Financial Risk

The primary source of financial risk to an insurer arises from its investment exposures and investment
activities. Thus, the investment portfolios maintain a prudent approach in its investment strategy and
investment exposures to ensure that investment returns are optimized on a risk adjusted basis and to
ensure the Company operates within its defined risk appetite.

11" Annual Report Book | \ 43



AS A AN

qEFT AT AT AT LA

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 32nd Ashadh 2075

44 /

i)

ii)

iii)

Life

Insurance
Company

Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to a risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting

in financial loss to the Company. Thus, for an insurance contract, credit risk includes the risk that

an insurer incurs a financial loss because a reinsurer defaults on its obligations under the
reinsurance contract.

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Group's exposure to credit risk:

a) The Company does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty
or any group of counterparties.

b) Reinsurance is placed with counterparties that have a good credit rating and concentration
of risk is avoided by entering into agreement with more than one party. At each reporting
date, management performs an assessment of creditworthiness of reinsurers and updates
the reinsurance purchase strategy, ascertaining suitable allowance for impairment.

@) The company deals with only creditworthy counterparties and obtains sufficient collateral
where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. Loan
against life insurance policies is adequately backed up by premium received.

Liquidity Risk
The risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
Liquidity adequacy is a measure or assessment of the ability of a company to meet payment
obligations in a full and timely manner within a defined time horizon. It is a function of its sources
of liquidity relative to its liquidity needs. Liquidity sources can be internal and external, available
immediately or within the defined time horizon, and includes all funds, assets and arrangements
that allow an insurer to meet its liquidity needs. Liquidity needs include all current and expected
payment obligations within the defined time horizon.

The following table depicts the maturity profile of the investment portfolio on a discounted cash

flow basis which is designed and managed to meet the required level of liquidity as and when

liquidity outgo arises taking into consideration the time horizon of the financial liabilities of the
business.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: foreign exchange
rates (currency risk), market interest rates (interest rate risk) and market prices (price risk).

a) Currency Risk

Foreign exchange risk is the potential for the Company to experience volatility in the value
of its assets, liabilities and solvency and to suffer actual financial losses as a result of
changes in value between the currencies of its assets and liabilities and its reporting
currency. The Company does not maintain foreign currency denominated assets in its
investment portfolios and as such is not exposed to foreign exchange risk related to
investments.

The Company has no significant concentration of currency risk. The amount with reinsurer
is settled in Nepali Rupee.

b) Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The major interest rate risk that the Company is exposed to is the discount rate for
determining insurance liabilities.

) Equity Price Risk
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in equity prices (other than those arising from interest
rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the
individual financial instrument or its issuer, or by factors affecting all similar financial
instruments traded in the market.
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The Company's equity price risk exposure relates to financial investment held at FVTOCI; whose
values fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices.
5.2 Liability Adequacy Test
The company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether its recognized insurance liabilities
are adequate, using current estimates of future cash flows under its insurance contracts. If assessment
shows that the carrying amount of insurance contract liabilities is inadequate in the light of the estimated
future cash flows, the entire deficiency shall be recognized in profit or loss.

5.2.1 The accounting Policy for Liability testing including the frequency and nature of testing
The valuation is carried out annually. For the first time the NFRS accounting standard is perused while
carrying out liability testing and valuation.
The nature of Liability Adequacy Test is an assessment of whether the carrying amount of an insurance
liability needs to be increased (or the carrying amount of related deferred acquisition costs or related
intangible assets decreased), based on a review of future cash flows. The purpose of LAT is to verify
the adequacy of provisioning for life insurance. The test consists of comparing the amount of provisions
with the best estimate of provisions, arrived at on the basis of the present value of the best estimate
of the future expected contractual and other cash flows. The calculation is performed for each separate
contract while the results are aggregated on the level of homogenous groups. The test is based on a
unified methodology that determines, among others, the grouping of policies into homogenous groups,
the 6% discount rate as specified by regulator and the type of cash flows being modelled. The portfolio
balance is tested as at the last day of the business year.
The liabilities being within the available scheme-wise funds the liability adequacy requirement is not
invoked.

5.2.2 The cash-flows considered.
The present value of all cash-flows of benefits, including riders, supplementary benefits, vested bonuses,
future bonuses and guarantees, under individual policy contract have been projected and the present
value is arrived at as on the date of valuation. Similarly, present value of cash-flows of future premiums
and future expenses have also been considered while arriving at the liability under each policy.

5.2.3 Valuation Method, Discounting Policy and Cashflow

Statutory reserves are calculated on prospective basis using present value of benefits and/or expenses
and interest and provide credit of present value of future gross premium. Beema Samiti prescribed
discounting rates has been used while computing the liability of the policies.

The present value of all cash-flows of benefits, including riders, supplementary benefits, vested bonuses,
future bonuses, under individual policy contract have been projected and the present value is arrived
at as on the date of valuation. Similarly, present value of cash-flows of future premiums and future
expenses have also been considered while arriving at the liability under each policy.
The assumptions used are as under:

Discount Rate 6% as per Beema samiti Guidelines

Mortality Table Nepal Assured Mortality Table

Interest 5% to 6% per annum

Expenses i) First year expenses by: Sum Assured related, 1st Year 25 per 1,000 Sum
assured per annum

ii) Renewal Expenses (including overhead expenses) by: sum assured related,

5 per 1000 Sum assured per annum

Claim expenses 5 per thousand of Sum Assured

Inflation 4 % per annum

5.2.4 Aggregation practices
Each policy is valued as per Gross Premium Reserve Method. While presenting the results it has been
aggregated on similar nature portfolio of Endowment, Endowment cum Whole Life and Moneyback.
The liabilities under each of the group are less than the available fund as at 16th July 2018 and hence
the liability adequacy requirements are duly met.
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5.3

5.3.1

5.4

5.5
5.5.1

Capital Management

The focus of capital management is to maintain a strong capital base to support the business and

business growth, and to satisfy regulatory capital requirements at all times.

In view of this the Company has established the following objectives, policies and approach;

a) To maintain the required solvency level and provide security to policyholders.

b) To allocate capital efficiently and support the growth of the business by ensuring that returns
on capital employed meets the requirements of shareholders and policyholders.

Q) To maintain financial strength to support new business growth and to satisfy the requirements
of the policyholders, regulators and stakeholders.

Regulatory minimum paid up capital

Life insurance companies were required by the Monetary Policy 2015/16 to attain a stipulated minimum
paid up capital of NPR 2 billion by mid-July 2018. As on the reporting date, the company's paid up capital
is NPR 1.256 billion against the stipulated requirement. The Company plans to attain the minimum paid
up capital through right issue.

Solvency Margin
The Company has Solvency Margin Ratio of 1.81 computed in accordance with Solvency Margin Directive, 2070.

Dividends

Dividends payable to the Company's shareholders are charged to equity in the period in which they are
approved by the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting. Proposed dividends are disclosed in notes
separately until approved by the Annual General Meeting.

Proposed dividend for FY 2017-18

The Board of directors in its meeting dated 2077/10/16 has not proposed any dividends for the fiscal
year 2017-18

Financial Instruments

Fair value of financial instruments:

Fair Value Hierarchy

Assets and liabilities carried at fair value or for which fair values are disclosed have been classified into three
levels according to the observability of the significant inputs used to determine the fair values. Changes in
the observability of significant valuation inputs during the reporting period may result in a transfer of assets
and liabilities within the fair value hierarchy. The company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair
value hierarchy when there is a significant change in either its principal market or the level of observability
of the inputs to the valuation techniques as at the end of the reporting period.

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 valuations are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted
prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using
models where all significant inputs are observable.

Level 3 portfolios are those where at least one input, which could have a significant effect on the
instrument's valuation, is not based on observable market data.

Financial instruments Held at Fair value through OCI

Particulars AI:;:;r? 22?)35 A:\;aadt h3;(s)t74 Shgw;:;:m
Investment in Shares Measured at FVTOCI

Quoted 955,474,556 708,567,272 747,451,605
Unquoted 6,769,200 20,240,444 7,696,100
Total

Investment in Mutual Fund

Quoted 84,206,742 114,507,344 90,244,065
Unquoted - - -
Total 1,046,450,498 843,315,060 845,391,770
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Financial Instruments held at amortized cost

5.6 Earnings per share (EPS)

The Company measures earning per share on the basis of the earning attributable to the equity shareholders
for the period. The number of shares is taken as the weighted average number of shares for the relevant
period as required by NAS 33 Earnings per Share.

There is no convertible and other option, future instruments which would dilute the current earnings of
equity holders. During the year the company has issued bonus shares from which no additional resource is
obtained. Such bonus Pursuant to the requirement of NAS 33, the company has retrospectively adjusted and

restated the BEPS and DEPS for previous year.

5.7 Segment Reporting

The company is organized for management and reporting purposes into business segments based on nature
of insurance contract policies such as Endowment policy, Money back policy, Whole life policy, Foreign
employment and Term policy. The focus in on broadening and deepening the relationship with clients, along
with maximizing a particular product line. Hence, the company evaluates segmental performance based on

overall profit or loss before taxation.

Basis for Allocation
a. Net insurance premium revenue are the revenue generated from each insurance policy.
b. Other Income have been apportioned based of the weightage as per Directive no 13, prescribed by Beema samiti.

C. Expenses that are not directly identifiable to a segment are apportioned based of weightage as per
the directive no.14, prescribed by the Beema Samiti. In accordance to which 10% of the total expenses
are unallocated expenses that are to be carried to income statements are included in Unallocable in
the segment report, while the rest of 90% is allocated based on their weight.

5.7.1

d. Impairment losses and taxation have been allocated to un allocable as they relate to the organization
as a whole instead of segments on actual basis.
e. Agent Expenses (which includes Agent Commission, Agent Training Expenses and Other agent expenses)

has been allocated using both actual and weightage prescribed by Beema samiti. Here Agent commission
are included in actual basis for each segment, which Agent Training Expenses and Other agent expenses
have been apportioned using the weightage as prescribed by Beema samiti.

f. The company has shown allocable assets and liabilities in their respective notes such as insurance
contract liability. However, the assets and liabilities have not been allocated to reportable segments
as it is impracticable to segregate all such assets and liabilities.

Non-
Participating Business Participating
Business Total i
Item . Line No.
Business
Asian Money Child Endowment Term
Endowment Back Endowment |& Whole Life| Insurance
1 2A 2B 2C 2D 3 4 5
Suurces
Valuation Surplus 46,22,45,312 | 20,20,03,172 | 65,12,16,016 | 37,26,07,394 3 1,68,80,71,894 1
Surplus brought forwared from 1,87,55,568 | 3,41,98,720 | 4,00,38,679| 2,30,12,561 11,60,05528 | 2
previous valuation
Interim bonus paid during the year - - - - -l 3
Total Profit/Surplus available for | 48,10,00,880| 23,62,01,892 | 69,12,54,695 | 39,56,19,955 1804077422 4
distribution (Sum of Line 1to 3)
Uses
Surplus allocated to Policyholders | 38,02,57,824| 7,2399,522 | 40,82,79,680 | 29,90,30,408 1,1599,67434| 5
for distribution of Bonus
Surplus allocated to Shareholders 4,22,50,869 80,44,391| 4,53,64,409| 3,32,25,601 12,88,85,270 6
Interim Bonus paid during the - - - - -7
financial year
Surplus Carried forward 5,84,92,187| 15,57,57,979 | 23,76,10,606 | 6,33,63,946 51,52,24,717 8
Total 48,10,00,880 | 23,62,01,892 | 69,12,54,695 | 39,56,19,955 1,80,40,77,422| 9
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5.8

5.9

Related party disclosures

The related parties of the Company which meets the definition of related parties as defined in "NAS 24
Related Parties Disclosure" are as follows:

i. Key Management Personnel (KMP)
The key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility of planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly including any director. The
key management of the Company includes members of its Board of Directors, Chief Executive Officer,
and Higher-Level employee of the Company. The name of Board of Director & key management
personnel during the year were as follows:

Name of the OD & Key Management Personnel Post
Deepak Kumar Shrestha BOD Chairman
Sushant Chachan Director

Surendra Kumar Goel Director

Shilpa Pradhanang Director

Ravi Kumar Gupta Director

Saurav Rungata Director

Rajesh Kumar Shrestha Chief Executive Officer

Compensation to Key Management Personnel

The members of Board of Directors are entitled for meeting allowances. Salary and Allowances paid to the
Chief Executive Officer is based on the contract entered by the company with him whereas compensation
paid to other member of KMP are governed by Employees Byelaws and decisions made by management
time to time in this regard. In addition to salaries and allowances, non- cash benefits like vehicle facility,
subsidized rate employees' loan, termination benefits are also provided to KMP.

The details relating to compensation paid to key management personnel (directors only) were as follows:

Particulars Current Year

Meeting Fees Rs.6,84,000.00
Other Expenses Rs.78,272.00
Total Rs.7,62,272.00

Compensation paid to Chief Executive Officer:
Mr. Rajesh Kumar Shrestha: Rs.72,27,545.00
Other than above, fuel and mobile expenses have been reimbursed by the company.

Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

i) the Company does not have any pending litigation other than related to Insurance Policy, that would
impact its financial position.

ii) The Company does not have any capital commitment

iii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

First Time Adaptation reconciliations and disclosures

NFRS 1 (First-time Adoption of Nepal Financials Reporting Standards) provides a suitable starting point for accounting
in accordance with NFRS and is required to be mandatorily followed by first-time adopters.

The Company has prepared the opening Statement of Financial Position as per NFRS as of 1st Shrawan, 2073 (16
July 2016) (the transition date) by:

A.
B.
C

Recognizing all assets and liabilities whose recognition is required by NFRS,

Derecognizing items of assets or liabilities which are not permitted by NFRS,

Reclassifying items from previous Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) to NFRS as required under
NFRS, and
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D. Applying NFRS in measurement of recognized assets and liabilities.

Exceptions

As per NFRS 1 any change in accounting policy should be applied retrospectively, however it prohibits retrospective
application of some aspects of other NFRS. Some of the exceptions which are relevant to the entity are as follows
Estimates:

An entity's estimates in accordance with NFRSs at the date of transition to NFRSs shall be consistent with estimates

made for the same date in accordance with previous GAAP. The company does not have any such estimates made
under NFRS which is different than the local GAAP on date of transitions.

Classification and measurement of financial assets:

An entity shall assess whether a financial asset carried at amortized cost meets the conditions of NFRS 9 on the
basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at the date of transition to NFRSs. Accordingly, for investment carried
at amortized cost as on date of transition the business model test and cash flow test has been checked for the same
date. As per the exception for retrospective application classification based on the circumstance prevailing at initial
recognition would be difficult and perhaps impossible.

Exemptions
NFRS 1 has provided various optional exemption from some requirement of other NFRS. Retrospective application
of some of the standard can require significant resources and could in some circumstances be impracticable.

Insurance Contract: First-time adopter may apply the transitional provisions in NFRS 4 Insurance Contracts. NFRS
4 restricts changes in accounting policies for insurance contracts, including changes made by a first-time adopter.
The company has been already using Gross Premium Valuation for insurance contract liabilities in existing GAAP.
Deemed Cost: The entity has not used fair value on date of transition as deemed cost except Land. Rather, the
carrying amount under previous GAAP of an item of property, plant and equipment (except land) has been considered
as deemed cost on date of transition. (IG7). There is no requirement for componentization nor there was any major
replacement which was not capitalized in previous year.

6.1 Significant changes from the policies adopted in the past
Significant changes from the accounting policies adopted under previous GAAP (erstwhile Nepal Accounting
Standards and directives issued by Insurance Board of Nepal) and the adoption of NFRS has been disclosed
in the respective segments, including the impact. The detailed impact disclosure is given belo

6.1.1 Reconciliation of total equity as at 16 July 2016, 15 July 2017, 16 July 2018

Reconciliation of Equity as at 2073-04-01 EXPI:IZ:Z?W AmNo:; ts

Equity as per GAAP 984,592,657
Adjustment for Dividend as per GAAP 1 7,066,607
FV Change of Investment in shares measured at FVTOCI 2 14,367,685
Provision for PWD/MIB reversed 3 26,171,762
Defined Benefit Obligation Reversal 4 2,806,025
Leave Encashment Liability Reversal 4 2,807,967
Revaluation Reserve of Land 5 15,569,149
Deferred Tax Impact in Equity 6 (133,328,296)
Total Adjustments (64,539,101)
Reconciled Equity Balance 920,053,556
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Reconciliation of Equity as at 2074-03-31 EXPILagztsory AmNol:‘; ts

Equity as per GAAP 1,032,693,076
FV Change of Investment in shares measured at FVTOCI 2 (202,386,224)
Dividends to shareholders 1 2,543,979
Impact in Profit of Previous Year See Profit Reco 53,781,691
Provision for PWD/MIB 3 26,171,762
Defined Benefit Obligation Impact in Equity 4 (1,382,679)
Leave Encashment Liability Reversal 73.04.01 carried 4 2,807,967
Deferred Tax Impact in Equity 6 (78,092,642)
Revaluation Reserve of Land 5 18,745,399
Fair Value Reserve Transferred to Insurance Contract Liabilities 129,309,163
Total Adjustments (48,501,585)
Reconciled Equity Balance 984,191,491
Reconciliation of Equity as at 2075-03-32 Epr:Iaor;:Zory AmNo:; ts

Equity as per GAAP 1,466,968,991
FV Change of Investment in shares measured at FVTOCI 2 (371,936,272)
Change in Accumulated Profit of Upto 2074-75 See Profit Reco 176,056,747
Provision for PWD/MIB 3 26,171,762
Defined Benefit Obligation Impact 4 (1,382,679)
Leave Encashment Liability Reversal 73.04.01 carried 4 2,807,967
Actuarial Loss (8,381,075)
Deferred Tax Impact in Equity 6 (33,609,862)
Revaluation Reserve of Land 18,745,399
Share Issue Expenses Charged to Share Premium 7 (3,537,286)
Fair Value Reserve Transferred to Insurance Contract Liabilities 129,309,163
Total Adjustments (65,756,137)
Reconciled Equity Balance 1,401,212,854

Explanatory Notes:

1.

As per previous GAAP, dividend for the year was recognized in the same financial year but the actual obligation
to pay was established in subsequent financial year. Therefore, the dividend is adjusted accordingly.
The Adjustments made here is of reversal of provision made in previous GAAP due to fair value concept in
NFRS and the recognition of changes in Fair Value of investment. Increase in fair value is added to equity and
decrease in fair value is deducted from equity through OCI.

Provision for PWD/MIB has been reversed and the insurance contract liabilities recognizes all the liabilities
related thereof.

Under NFRS, the Defined Benefit Obligation (that comprise gratuity valuation and compensated leave) as per
Actuarial Valuation have been lesser than that of recognized as per previous GAAP, the difference amount
has been reversed.

Revaluation Reserve created out of revaluation of Land has been recognized in equity through OCI.
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6. Deferred Tax Impact raised due to Revaluation of Land, Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Obligation on
Actuary Valuation, Remeasurement of Investment measured through OCI have been recognized in Income
Statement and Statement of OCl accordingly.

7. Share issue expenses have been reversed from statement of profit and loss and charged directly to equity.

6.1.2 Reconciliation of profit

Reconciliation of Profit as on 2074-03-32 2RI Sonne

Notes NPR
Profit as per GAAP 50,644,398
Gratuity Expense Reversal as per Actuarial Valuation 4,544,675
Leave Expense Reversal as per Actuarial Valuation 1 3,876,333
Reversal of Profit on Sale of Investment as per GAAP 1 (46,093,331)
Reversal of Provision for Investment 2 72,707,062
Deferred Tax Impact 2 18,746,952
Adjustments 3 53,781,691
Profit as per NFRS 104,426,089
Reconciliation of Profit as on 2075-03-32 2RI Amounts
Notes NPR

Profit as per GAAP (30,877,709)
Reversal of Provision for Investment as per GAAP 2 159,319,233
Gratuity Expense Reversal as per Actuarial Valuation 1 4,004,754
Leave Expense Reversal as per Actuarial Valuation 1 (3,607,776)
Provision for PWD/MIB GAAP 4 (26,171,762)
Reversal of Profit on Sale of Investment GAAP 2 (58,889,834)
Share Issue Expense Reversal GAAP 5 3,537,286
Deferred Tax Impact 3 44,083,154
Adjustments 122,275,056
Profit as per NFRS 91,397,347

Explanatory Notes

1.

Under NFRS, the Defined Benefit Obligation (that comprise gratuity valuation and compensated leave) as per
Actuarial Valuation have been lesser than that of recognized as per previous GAAP, the difference amount
has been reversed.

Subsequent measurement of Investments carried at FVTOCI in fair value, provision for investment recognized
as per local GAAP has been reversed in profit and loss. The difference in fair value have been recognized
through OCI.

Deferred Tax Impact raised due to Revaluation of Land, Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Obligation on
Actuary Valuation, Remeasurement of Investment measured through OCl have been recognized in Income
Statement and Statement of OCl accordingly.

Provision for PWD/MIB has been reversed as the insurance contract liabilities recognizes all the liabilities
related thereof.

Share issue expenses have been reversed from profit and loss and charged directly to equity as per relevant
NFRS.
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6.1.5 Reconciliation of Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 15 July 2017 due to adoption of NFRS
Notes on cash flow statement
There is no any changes in cash inflow due to NFRS. However, major adjustments are observed mainly
due to reclassification of call deposits from investment in Local GAAP to cash and cash equivalent in
NFRS financials. Loan against insurance policies was earlier shown under investing activity in Local GAAP

which has now been classified as operating activity.

Reconciliation of Cash Flow Statement
For the Year ended 31.03.2074

Particulars Motes | otes | Notes T | NRR

Net cash flows from operating activities 3 1,599,227,772 | (1,610,364,859) | (11,137,087)
Net cash flows from investing activities 2 (1,244,210,295) |  1,520,150,000 | 275,939,705
Net cash flows from financing activities (14,738,929) (14,738,929)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalent 1 340,278,549 (90,214,859) | 250,063,690
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the period 1 224,756,506 | 313,093,817 | 537,850,323
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the period 1 565,035,055 | 222,878,957 | 787,914,012

Explanatory Notes

NAS 7 defines cash equivalents as 'short-term' highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value'.
Under NFRS, Treasury bills and short-term government bonds with a maturity date of three
months or less is shown as cash and cash equivalents. Likewise, Interest Bearing Deposits placed
in Commercial and Development banks are classified as Cash and cash Equivalent as per NFRS,

Interest Income on Fixed Deposits in Commercial Banks are classified as Income from Operation

1.

which used to be previously classified as Investment.
2.

instead of Income from Investment.
3.

The difference is due to reclassification of Investments and Interest accrued on same and
reclassification of other financial liabilities like loan against Insurance Policies. The short-term
investment previously shown as operating activities has been included in investment activities
except that having maturity period 3 months or less which is included in cash and cash equivalent.
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